
 
 
 
 

DAVID Y. IGE 
Governor 

JOSH GREEN 
Lt. Governor 

DAVID Y. IGE 
Governor 

 
JAMES J. NAKATANI 

Executive Director 

STATE OF HAWAII 
AGRIBUSINESS DEVELOPMENT CORPORATION 

235 S. Beretania Street, Room 205 
Honolulu, HI  96813 

Phone:  (808) 586-0186   Fax:  (808) 586-0189 

Meeting of the Board of Directors 

Held via Teleconference 

May 18, 2022 
9:00 a.m. 

Pursuant to Public Act 220, SLH 2021, this meeting will be held using interactive conference 
technology (ICT). Board members, staff, persons with business before the Board, and the public 
may participate remotely online using ICT, or may participate via the in-person meeting site which 
provides ICT.  

Interested persons may submit written testimony in advance of the meeting, which will be 
distributed to Board members prior to the meeting.   We request that testimony be received by our 
office not less than 72 hours prior to the meeting to ensure that staff has time to disseminate it 
and that Board members have time to review it. Written testimony may be submitted electronically 
to hdoa.adc@hawaii.gov or sent via U.S. Postal Service to: Agribusiness Development 
Corporation, 235 South Beretania Street Rm 205, Honolulu HI 96813. 

When testifying via ICT, via telephone, or in-person, you will be asked to identify yourself and the 
organization you represent, if any. Each testifier will be limited to two (2) minutes of testimony per 
agenda item. 

The public may participate in the meeting via: 

ICT: https://zoom.us/j/94974946877 

Telephone: (669) 900-6833,  Web ID:  949 7494 6877

In-Person:  at the meeting location indicated below 

ICT ACCESS 
To view the meeting and provide live oral testimony, please use the link at the top of the agenda. You will be asked to 
enter your name.  The Board requests that you enter your full name, but you may use a pseudonym or other identifier if 
you wish to remain anonymous.  You will also be asked for an email address.  You may fill in this field with any entry in an 
email format, e.g., ****@****.com. 

Your microphone will be automatically muted. When the Chairperson asks for public testimony, you may click the Raise 
Hand button found on your Zoom screen to indicate that you wish to testify about that agenda item. The Chairperson or 
staff will individually enable each testifier to unmute their microphone. When recognized by the Chairperson, please 
unmute your microphone before speaking and mute your microphone after you have finished speaking. 

For both ICT, phone, and in-person access, when testifying, you will be asked to identify yourself and the organization, if 
any, that you represent. Each testifier will be limited to two minutes of testimony per agenda item. 

TELEPHONE ACCESS 
If you do not have ICT access, you may get audio-only access by calling the Telephone Number listed at the top on the 
agenda. 

Upon dialing the number, you will be prompted to enter the Meeting ID which is also listed at the top of the agenda.  After 
entering the Meeting ID, you will be asked to either enter your panelist number or wait to be admitted into the meeting. 
Please wait until you are admitted into the meeting. 

001

mailto:hdoa.adc@hawaii.gov
https://zoom.us/j/94974946877


Meeting of the ADC Board of Directors  May 18, 2022 
Agenda  Page 2 of 9 
 
When the Chairperson asks for public testimony, you may indicate you want to testify by entering “#” and then “9” on your 
phone’s keypad.  After entering “#” and then “9”, a voice prompt will let you know that the host of the meeting has been 
notified.  When recognized by the Chairperson, you may unmute yourself by pressing “#” and then “6” on your phone.  A 
voice prompt will let you know that you are unmuted. Once you are finished speaking, please enter “#” and then “6” again 
to mute yourself. 
 
For both ICT, telephone, and in-person access, when testifying, you will be asked to identify yourself and the organization, 
if any, that you represent.  Each testifier will be limited to two minutes of testimony per agenda item. 
 
Instructions to attend State of Hawaii virtual board meetings may be found online at 
https://cca.hawaii.gov/pvl/files/2020/08/State-of-Hawaii-Virtual-Board-Attendee-Instructions.pdf . 
 
IN-PERSON ACCESS 
There will also be one meeting location, open to the public, which will have an audio-visual connection.  That meeting will 
be held at: 
 

State of Hawaii, Department of Agriculture 
Hale Waiolama Board Room 
1428 South King Street 
Honolulu, Hawaii 96814-2512 

 
For both ICT, telephone, and in-person access, when testifying, you will be asked to identify yourself and the organization, 
if any, that you represent.  Each testifier will be limited to two minutes of testimony per agenda item. 
 
LOSS OF CONNECTIVITY 
In the event of a loss of ICT connectivity, the meeting will be recessed for a period not to exceed thirty (30) minutes to 
restore connectivity with all board members and the public in-person access noted above.  In the event that audio 
connectivity is re-established within 30 minutes without video connectivity, interested participants can access the meeting 
via the telephone number and Meeting ID number noted above.   
 
In the further event that connectivity is unable to be restored within 30 minutes, the meeting will be automatically 
continued to a date and time to be posted on the ADC website at https://hdoa.hawaii.gov/adc/ no later than close of 
business the next business day.  New ICT, telephone, and in-person access information will also be posted on the 
website no less than twenty-four (24) hours prior to the continued meeting date.  Alternatively, if a decision is made to 
terminate the meeting, the termination will be posted on the ADC website. 
 
 
 

[agenda begins on the following page] 

002

https://cca.hawaii.gov/pvl/files/2020/08/State-of-Hawaii-Virtual-Board-Attendee-Instructions.pdf
https://hdoa.hawaii.gov/adc/


Meeting of the ADC Board of Directors  May 18, 2022 
Agenda  Page 3 of 9 
 

AGENDA 
 

A. Call to Order 

B. Roll Call 

C. Approval of Minutes  

1. None 
 

D. New Business 

1. Presentation by University of Hawaii Community Design Center Regarding 
the Whitmore Food Hub. 
 

2. Request for Approval to Issue a Request for Proposals to Construct and 
Operate a High Pressure Processing Machine and Agricultural Facilities in 
the Whitmore Food Hub, Wahiawa, Oahu 
 

3. Request for Approval to Renew Revocable Permit No. S-6814 Issued to 
Ronald P. Weidenbach dba Hawaii Fish Company for 18 Acres, More or 
Less, in Kaena, Waialua, Oahu, Tax Map Key (1) 6-9-001:003, :033 (por) 

 
4. Request for Approval to Renew Revocable Permit No. RP17-01 Issued to 

Andros Engineering Corporation for 132.25 Square Feet, More or Less, in 
Whitmore Village, Oahu, Tax Map Key (1) 7-1-002:004 (por) 

 
5. Request for Approval to Renew Revocable Permit No. RP20-02 Issued to 

Kelena Farms Inc. for 345.38 Acres in Waialua, Oahu, Tax Map Key (1) 6-5-
002:011, :006, :008, (1) 6-5-001:046 

 
6. Request for Approval to Renew Revocable Permit No. RP20-01 Issued to Ho 

Farms LLC for 57.296 Acres at Galbraith, Oahu, Tax Map Key (1) 7-1-
012:001 (por) 

 
7. Request for Approval to Renew Revocable Permit No. RP-W257-21-02 

Issued to The Davey Tree Expert Company and Davey Tree Surgery 
Company for 21,392.7 Square Feet, More or Less, in Whitmore Village, 
Oahu, Tax Map Key (1) 7-1-002:004 (por) 

 
8. Request for Authorization to Seek an Opinion from the Department of the 

Attorney General Concerning Legal Issues Pertaining to Kekaha Agriculture 
Association’s IAL Petition 
 

E. Old Business 
 

1. None 
 

F. Executive Director’s Update 

G. Adjourn 

003



Meeting of the ADC Board of Directors  May 18, 2022 
Agenda  Page 4 of 9 
 
 
 

 

The Board may go into Executive Session pursuant to exceptions provided under Section 92-5, Hawaii Revised Statutes 
(HRS), including to consult with the Board’s attorney on questions and issues pertaining to the Board’s powers, duties, 
privileges, immunities, and liabilities, pursuant to Section 92-5(4), HRS.” 
 
If you require special assistance or auxiliary aids or services to participate in the public hearing process, please contact 
staff at (808) 586-0186 at least three (3) business days prior to the meeting so arrangements can be made. 
                 
NOTE:  MATERIALS FOR THIS AGENDA WILL BE AVAILABLE FOR REVIEW ON OUR WEBSITE ON AND AFTER 
THURSDAY, MAY 12, 2022. 
 
The Agribusiness Development Corporation does not discriminate on the basis of race, color, sex, national origin, age, or 
disability, or any other class as protected under applicable federal or state law, in administration of its programs, or 
activities, and, the Agribusiness Development Corporation does not intimidate or retaliate against any individual or group 
because they have exercised their rights to participate in actions protected, or oppose action prohibited, by 40 C.F.R. 
Parts 5 and 7, or for the purpose of interfering with such rights. 
 
If you have any questions about this notice or any of the Agribusiness Development Corporation’s non-discrimination 
programs, policies, or procedures, you may contact: 
 

Delanie Prescott-Tate, Acting Non-Discrimination Coordinator 
Agribusiness Development Corporation 
425 Queen Street 
Honolulu, HI  96813 
(808) 586-1180 
hdoa.adc.titlevi@hawaii.gov  

 
If you believe that you have been discriminated against with respect to an Agribusiness Development Corporation 
program or activity, you may contact the Acting Non-Discrimination Coordinator identified above. 
 
To request language or accessibility for Agribusiness Development Corporation programs or public meetings, please 
contact the office, at (808) 586-0186 or email: hdoa.adc@hawaii.gov.  Please allow sufficient time for the Agribusiness 
Development Corporation to meet accommodation requests. 
 
To request language interpretation for this document, please contact: LEP Coordinator located at 1428 South King Street, 
Honolulu, HI 96813 (Phone: 808-973-9469 Email: hdoa.hr@hawaii.gov). Individuals may request oral interpretation 
services in order to request a written translation of this document. 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 004

mailto:hdoa.adc.titlevi@hawaii.gov
mailto:hdoa.adc@hawaii.gov
mailto:hdoa.hr@hawaii.gov


Meeting of the ADC Board of Directors  May 18, 2022 
Agenda  Page 5 of 9 
 
 

Non-Discrimination Statement 
Agribusiness Development Corporation Board Agendas 

 
 
If you require special assistance or auxiliary aids or services to participate in the public hearing process please contact 
staff at (808) 286-0186 at least three (3) business days prior to, the meeting so arrangements can be made. 
 
NOTE:  MATERIALS FOR THIS AGENDA WILL BE AVAILABLE FOR REVIEW IN THE ADC ‘s OFFICE,  235 S. 
BERETANIA STREET, ROOM 205, HONOLULU, HAWAII, ON AND AFTER MAY 12, 2022. 
 
The Agribusiness Development Corporation does not discriminate on the basis of race, color, sex, national origin, age, or 
disability, or any other class as protected under applicable federal or state law, in administration of its programs, or 
activities, and, the Agribusiness Development Corporation does not intimidate or retaliate against any individual or group 
because they heave exercised their rights to participate in actions protected, or oppose action prohibited, by 40 C.F.R. 
Parts 5 and 7, or for the purpose of interfering with such rights. 
 
If you have any questions about this notice or any of the Agribusiness Development Corporation’s non-discrimination 
programs, policies, or procedures, you may contact: 
 
 Hawai‘i Department of Agriculture 

1428 S. King Street, Honolulu, HI 96814,  
(808) 973-9560 
hdoa.titlevi@hawaii.gov 

 
If you believe that you have been discriminated against with respect to an Agribusiness Development Corporation 
program or activity, you may contact the HDOA Non-Discrimination Coordinator identified above. 
 
To request translation, interpretation, modifications, accommodations, or other auxiliary aids or services, contact the 
HDOA, at (808) 286-0186 or email: hdoa.adc@hawaii.gov. Please allow sufficient time for the Agribusiness Development 
Corporation and HDOA to meet accommodation requests. 
 
 
 
 
 

005



Meeting of the ADC Board of Directors  May 18, 2022 
Agenda  Page 6 of 9 
 
 

Non-Discrimination Statement 
Agribusiness Development Corporation Board Agendas 

 
 
Inā makemake ʻoe i ke kōkua kūikawā a i kekahi lawelawe keu paha e komo piha ai i ka hōʻike manaʻo no ka lehulehu, e 
hoʻohui me nā limahana ma (808) 286-0186 he ʻekolu (3) lā hana ma mua ma ka liʻiliʻi loa, i hiki ke hoʻomākaukau ʻia ia 
mau lawelawe kōkua ʻana. 
 
MANAʻO: E HIKI ANA KE NĀNĀ ʻIA KA MAʻIʻO O KĒIA PAPA KUMUMANAʻO MA KŌ KA POʻO ADC KEʻENA, 235 S. 
BERETANIA STREET, ROOM 205, HONOLULU, HAWAIʻI, I KA LĀ NŌ A MA HOPE AKU MAY 12, 2022. 
 
ʻAʻole nō hoʻokae ka ʻOihana Mahi ʻAi o ka Mokuʻāina o Hawaiʻi i kō ke kanaka lāhui, ʻili, keka, ʻāina, kūlana makahiki, 
kīnānā a mea ʻokoʻa aʻe i kaʻa ma lalo o nā kānāwai pekelala a mokuʻāina, ma ka hoʻokele ʻana i kona mau papahana, 
pāhana, a ʻaʻole hoʻi hoʻomakaʻu, ʻimi mākaia, a ʻākeʻakeʻa ka ʻOihana Mahi ʻAi i kekahi kanaka a hui paha ma muli o kō 
lākou pono, hihia ʻana i kekahi mau hana hoʻopale ʻia a i ʻole kūʻē kekahi mau hana hoʻokapu ʻia ma lalo o nā Mahele 5 a 
me ka 7 o ka 40 Papa Kānāwai Pekelala (C.F.R.). 
 
Inā he mau nīnau kāu no kēia hoʻolaha, a i ʻole no kekahi o kō ka ʻOihana Mahi ʻAi mau polokalamu, kulekele, a kaʻina 
hana i pili i ka hoʻokae, e hoʻohui ʻoe me: 
 
Hawai‘i Department of Agriculture 
1428 S. King Street, Honolulu, HI 96814,  
(808) 973-9560 
hdoa.titlevi@hawaii.gov 
 
Inā he manaʻo no kou hoʻokae ʻia i loko kekahi pōʻaiapili no kekahi pāhana a hanana o ka ʻOihana Mahi ʻAi, e hoʻohui nō 
ʻoe me [ka Hoʻolaukaʻi Hihia Hoʻokae] i ʻōlelo ʻia i luna aʻe nei. 
 
No ke noi ʻana i kōkua māhele a unuhi ʻōlelo, a me nā lawelawe a kōkua keu o kēlā ʻano kēia ʻano, e kelepona aku i ke 
keʻena o ka Luna Hoʻokele ma (808) 286-0186 a i ʻole e leka uila aku iā hdoa.adc@hawaii.gov. E ʻae mai i wā e hoʻolako 
aku ai ka HDOA i ia mau lawelawe ʻana. 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

006



Meeting of the ADC Board of Directors  May 18, 2022 
Agenda  Page 7 of 9 
 
 

Non-Discrimination Statement 
Agribusiness Development Corporation Board Agendas 

 
 
Nu masapulmo ti espesial a tulong wenno makatulong a tulong wenno serbisio tapno makapaset iti proseso ti publiko a 
panagdengngeg maidawat a kontakem ti empleado iti (808) 286-0186 iti saan a nababbaba ngem tallo (3) nga aldaw nga 
adda serrek sakbay ti pannakiuman tapno maaramid dagiti panagiyurnos. 
 
LAGLAGIPEN: DAGITI MATERIALES PARA ITI DAYTOY A PANGGEP KET SIDADAAN PARA ITI 
PANNAKATINGITING ITI OPISINA TI MANGIDADAULO ITI ADC, 235 S. BERETANIA STREET, ROOM 205, 
HONOLULU, HAWAII, BAYAT KEN KALPASANNA MAY 12, 2022. 
 
Ti Departamento ti Agrikultura ti Hawai‘i ket saan a mangidumduma maibasar iti puli, kolor, seks, nasion a nagtaudan, 
edad, wenno disabilidad, wenno aniaman a dadduma a klase a protektado iti masakupan ti maipakat a linteg ti pederal 
wenno estado, iti panangimaton kadagiti programa, wenno aktibidadna, ken, ti Departamento ti Agrikultura ket saan a 
mamutbuteng wenno bumales maibusor iti siasinoman nga indibidual wenno grupo gapu ta inusarda dagiti karbenganda a 
makipaset kadagiti tignay a maprotektaran, wenno sinumra ti aramid a maiparit, babaen ti 40 C.F.R. Paset 5 ken 7, 
wenno para iti panggep a panangsinga kadagita a karbengan. 
 
Nu addaanka iti aniaman a saludsod maipapan iti daytoy nga abiso wenno aniaman a programa, pagalagadan, wenno 
wagas ti saan a panangidumduma  
ti Departamento, mabalinmo a kontaken ti: 
 
Hawai‘i Department of Agriculture 
1428 S. King Street, Honolulu, HI 96814,  
(808) 973-9560 
hdoa.titlevi@hawaii.gov 
 
Nu patiem a naidumdumaka mainaig iti programa wenno aktibidad ti Departamento ti Agrikultura, mabalinmo a kontaken ti 
[Tagakoordina iti Saan a Panangidumduma] a nadakamat iti ngato. 
 
Tapno agkiddaw iti panagipatarus, interpretasion, modipikasion, akomodasion, wenno dadduma pay a pangtulong a 
tulong wenno serbisio, kontaken ti Opisina ti Mangidadaulo iti (808) 286-0186 wenno ag-email iti: hdoa.adc@hawaii.gov. 
Maidawat a palubusam ti umdas a tiempo para iti HDOA tapno matun-oyna dagiti kiddaw nga akomodasion. 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

007



Meeting of the ADC Board of Directors  May 18, 2022 
Agenda  Page 8 of 9 
 
 

Non-Discrimination Statement 
Agribusiness Development Corporation Board Agendas 

 
 
ຖ້າຫາກທ່ານຕ້ອງການຄວາມຊ່ວຍເຫືຼອພິເສດ ຫືຼ ເຄ່ືອງມືຊ່ວຍເຫືຼອ ຫືຼ ການບໍລິການເສີມ ເພ່ືອເຂ້ົາຮ່ວມໃນຂະບວນການໄຕ່ສວນພິຈາລະນາ 
ລຸນາຕິດຕ່ໍພະນັກງານທ່ີ (808) 286-0186 ຢ່າງໜ້ອຍສາມ (3) ວັນລັດຖະການກ່ອນ, ການປະຊຸມສາມາດຈັດການໄດ້. 
 
ໝາຍເຫດ: ອຸປະກອນ ສໍາລັບວາລະນ້ີຈະມີໃຫ້ໃຊ້ ສໍາລັບການກວດສອບຄືນໃນຫ້ອງການຂອງປະທານ, 235 S. BERETANIA STREET, ROOM 
205, HONOLULU, HAWAII ແລະ ຫັຼງຈາກນ້ັນ MAY 12, 2022. 
 
ພະແນກກະສິກໍາຂອງລັດຮາວາຍບ່ໍເລືອກຈໍາແນກບົນພ້ືນຖານດ້ານເຊ້ືອຊາດ, ສີຜິວ, ເພດ, ຊາດກໍາເນີດ, ອາຍຸ ຫືຼ ຄວາມພິການ ຫືຼ ກຸ່ມຄົນອ່ືນໆ 
ທ່ີຖືກປົກປ້ອງພາຍໃຕ້ກົດໝາຍລັດຖະບານ ຫືຼ ລັດທ່ີກ່ຽວຂ້ອງ, ໃນການບໍລິຫານໂຄງການ ຫືຼ ກິດຈະກໍາຕ່າງໆ ແລະ, ພະແນກກະສິກໍາບ່ໍໄດ້ຂ່ົມຂູ່ ຫືຼ 
ຕອບໂຕ້ຕ່ໍບຸກຄົນ ຫືຼ ກຸ່ມຄົນໃດໜ່ຶງ ເພາະວ່າພວກເຂົາໄດ້ໃຊ້ສິດທິຂອງເຂົາເຈ້ົາໃນການມີສ່ວນຮ່ວມໃນການກະທໍາທ່ີໄດ້ຮັບການຄຸ້ມຄອງ ຫືຼ 
ຄັດຄ້ານການກະທໍາທ່ີຖືກຫ້າມ, ໂດຍ 40 CFR ພາກ 5 ແລະ 7 ຫືຼ ເພ່ືອຈຸດປະສົງໃນການແຊກແຊງສິດທິດ່ັງກ່າວ. 
 
ຖ້າຫາກທ່ານມີຄໍາຖາມໃດໆກ່ຽວກັບແຈ້ງການສະບັບນ້ີ ຫືຼ ໂຄງການ, ນະໂຍບາຍ ຫືຼ ຂ້ັນຕອນທ່ີບ່ໍມີການຈໍາແນກຂອງພະແນກ, ທ່ານສາມາດຕິດຕ່ໍຫາ: 
 
Hawai‘i Department of Agriculture 
1428 S. King Street, Honolulu, HI 96814,  
(808) 973-9560 
hdoa.titlevi@hawaii.gov 
 
ຖ້າທ່ານເຊ່ືອວ່າທ່ານໄດ້ຖືກຈໍາແນກກ່ຽວກັບໂຄງການ ຫືຼ ກິດຈະກໍາຂອງກະຊວງກະສິກໍາ, ທ່ານສາມາດຕິດຕ່ໍຫາ [ຜູ້ປະສານງານການບ່ໍຈໍາແນກ] 
ທ່ີລະບຸຢູ່ຂ້າງເທິງ. 
 
ເພ່ືອຂໍການແປພາສາ, ການຕີຄວາມໝາຍ, ການດັດແປງ, ທ່ີພັກ ຫືຼ ການຊ່ວຍເຫືຼອ ຫືຼ ການບໍລິການເສີມອ່ືນໆ, ກະລຸນາຕິດຕ່ໍຫ້ອງການຂອງປະທານ 
ທ່ີ (808) 286-0186 ຫືຼ ສ່ົງອີເມວຫາ: hdoa.adc@hawaii.gov. ກະລຸນາອະນຸຍາດໃຫ້ມີເວລາພຽງພໍ ສໍາລັບ HDOA ເພ່ືອຕອບສະ 
ໜອງຄໍາຮ້ອງຂໍທ່ີພັກ. 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

008



Meeting of the ADC Board of Directors  May 18, 2022 
Agenda  Page 9 of 9 
 
 

Non-Discrimination Statement 
Agribusiness Development Corporation Board Agendas 

 
 
如果您需要特殊幫助或輔助設施或服務來參與公共聽證會過程，請至少在會議召開前三(3)個工作日致電(808) 286-0186 
聯絡工作人員，以便做出安排。 
 
備註：本議程的材料將在會議前後可在BOA主席辦公室查閱，地址為 
ADC, 235 S. BERETANIA STREET, ROOM 205, HONOLULU, HAWAII。MAY 12, 2022. 
 
Hawai‘i農業部在其管理的計劃或活動中，不會基於種族、膚色、性別、國籍、年齡或殘障，或任何其他受適用聯邦或州法

律保護的類別而进行歧視行為，並且農業部不因任何個人或團體依據40 
C.F.R.第5部份和第7部份行使其權利進行受保護活動或反對禁止的行為，或以干擾其權利為目的而恐嚇或報復他們。 
 
如果您對本通告或本部門的任何無歧視計劃、政策或程序有任何疑問，您可以聯絡： 
 
Hawai‘i Department of Agriculture 
1428 S. King Street, Honolulu, HI 96814,  
(808) 973-9560 
hdoa.titlevi@hawaii.gov 
 
如果您認為您在參與農業部計劃或活動中受到歧視，請聯絡上述確定的  
[無歧視協調員]。 
 
如需翻譯、口譯、修改、住宿或其他輔助設施與服務，請聯絡主席辦公室，致電(808) 286-0186 或發送電子郵件至 
hdoa.adc@hawaii.gov。請允許HDOA足夠的時間來滿足住宿要求。 

 

009



 
 
 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 

DAVID Y. IGE 
Governor 

 
JOSH GREEN 
Lt. Governor 

DAVID Y. IGE 
Governor 

 

 
 

JAMES J. NAKATANI 
Executive Director 

STATE OF HAWAII 
AGRIBUSINESS DEVELOPMENT CORPORATION 

235 S. Beretania Street, Room 205 
Honolulu, HI  96813 

Phone:  (808) 586-0186   Fax:  (808) 586-0189 

ITEM D-2 

 
May 18, 2022 

 
Subject: Request for Approval to Issue a Request for Proposal to Construct 

and Operate a High-Pressure Processing Machine and 
Agricultural Facilities in the Whitmore Food Hub, Wahiawa, Oahu 

 
Applicant:  N/A 
 
Authority:  Section 163D-4(a)(5), Hawaii Revised Statutes    
 
Area:   Island of Oahu 
 
Tax Map Key:  N/A 
 
Land Status:  N/A  
 
Trust Land Status: N/A 
  
Character of Use: Processing Facility 
 
Contract Term: TBD 
 
 
 
BACKGROUND: 
 
The State of Hawaii Agribusiness Development Corporation (ADC) seeks to solicit 
proposals to construct, operate and maintain a high-pressure processing (HPP) machine 
and agricultural facilities situated within the Whitmore Food Hub in Wahiawa, Oahu.  
 
This request seeks to bring High Pressure Processing (HPP) technology to Hawaii for 
use by farmers and other food producers. Local farmers and food producers face 
challenges of: 1) delivery and shipping logistics, and 2) the limited shelf-life of Hawaii-
made value-added food products.  Addressing this challenge will immensely increase 
the economic development opportunities for Hawaii’s agricultural and “value-added” 
industries.  
 
HPP is a non-thermal technology that pasteurizes and preserves food, thereby 
extending the shelf-life of food products from several weeks up to months, without 
compromising overall food quality. It enables farmers and value-added processors to 
scale distribution and exports with non-thermal technology to preserve and pasteurize 
food products without compromising overall food quality and food safety.  HPP machines 

010



Request for Approval to Issue a Request for Proposal to Construct and Operate a High-Pressure 
Processing Machine and Agricultural Facilities in the Whitmore Food Hub, Wahiawa, Oahu 
May 18, 2022 
Page 2 of 4 
 
can process a wide variety of foods, including fruits, vegetables, meats and seafoods.  It 
can deliver ready-to-eat meals, ready-to-cook meats, juices, soups, sauces, dips, and 
dairy-based products. 
 
It is a proven, growing technology used extensively on the mainland, but so far, not 
available locally.  High start-up costs make it difficult for the private sector to take on this 
investment.   
 
Accordingly, the State is creating a “food hub”, that establishes HPP center at its core, 
with supportive facilities including cold storage and distribution capabilities. It will be 
located in Central Oahu within the Whitmore Food Hub (Tax Map Key numbers. (1) 7-1-
002:009 and (1) 7-1-002:004.  At full build out, The Food Hub will also include offices, 
additional warehousing, and workforce housing. 
 
ADC is awarding up to Five Million Five Hundred Thousand Dollars ($5,500,000) for the 
purchase, delivery, and installation of said machine(s), as well as hiring technical 
expertise, staff training, and project support. The funding was provided by the State of 
Hawaii Department of Business, Economic Development, and Tourism to progress the 
state’s agricultural post-production capacity to support local demand and scalability of 
value-added exports.   
 
ADC will own the machine(s); however, it will be purchased, installed, and maintained by 
the selected Offeror.  The selected Offeror will be responsible for providing materials and 
labor for operating and maintaining the HPP machine(s), as well as the food processing 
hub complex. It will establish user fees, as approved by ADC. The selected Offeror will 
also be responsible for obtaining all required land use entitlements, government 
approvals, and permits, and operating the HPP machine on behalf of the State for a 
minimum of seven years.  In consideration of the Offeror’s services and the Offeror’s 
proposed rent schedule, the ADC will provide the selected Offeror with funding for the 
HPP machine and a ground lease for up to 553,778 square feet (12.3 acres) within the 
Whitmore Food Hub. 
 
The ADC’s evaluation committee, comprised of at least three (3) qualified state 
employees, will evaluate the proposals and select the Offeror whose proposal best 
meets ADC’s objectives and the RFP selection criteria. 
 
REQUEST: 
 
Pursuant to Chapter 163D-4(8), authorize the Executive Director to issue a Request for 
Proposal (see “Exhibit A”) to purchase and operate a high-pressure processing machine       
and develop and manage a food processing facility in Wahiawa, Oahu. 
 
RECOMMENDATION: 
 
Based upon the above, the recommendation is to approve the request to issue a 
Request for Proposal to construct and operate a HPP machine and agricultural facilities 
and authorize the Executive Director to negotiate and enter into a public private 
partnership subject to the following conditions: 
 

011



Request for Approval to Issue a Request for Proposal to Construct and Operate a High-Pressure 
Processing Machine and Agricultural Facilities in the Whitmore Food Hub, Wahiawa, Oahu 
May 18, 2022 
Page 3 of 4 
 

1) ADC will provide up to $5.5 million to acquire at least one, possibly two HPP 
machine, and installation of said equipment, as well as project support; 
 

2) The term of the Contract shall be for a minimum 7 years, with the option to 
extend; 
 

3) ADC shall own the equipment throughout its usable life and the Offeror shall be 
responsible for operating and maintaining the HPP machine and facility for a 
minimum of 7 years; 
 

4) ADC shall receive, at minimum, a fee equivalent to 1% of any gross sales over 
the first $1 million of gross sales generated by the HPP machine operations; and 
 

5) In consideration of the Offerors services, the ADC will provide the Offeror a lease 
for up to 553,778 square feet (12.3 acres) within the Whitmore Food Hub for the 
development of agricultural facilities. 

 
 
      Respectfully submitted, 
 
 
 
      James J. Nakatani 
      Executive Director 
 

012



 
 
 

 
 
 
 

 
 

DAVID Y. IGE 
Governor 

 
JOSH GREEN 
Lt. Governor 

JAMES J. NAKATANI 
Executive Director 

STATE OF HAWAII 
AGRIBUSINESS DEVELOPMENT CORPORATION 

235 S. Beretania Street, Room 205 
Honolulu, HI  96813 

Phone:  (808) 586-0186   Fax:  (808) 586-0189 

ITEM D-3 

May 18, 2022 
 
Subject: Request for Approval to Renew Revocable Permit No. S-6814 

Issued to Ronald P. Weidenbach dba Hawaii Fish Company for 18 
Acres, More or Less, in Kaena, Waialua, Oahu, Tax Map Key (1) 6-
9-001:003, :033 

 
Permittee:  Ronald P. Weidenbach dba Hawaii Fish Company 
 
Authority:  Section 163D-4(a)(5), Hawaii Revised Statutes 
 
Area:   18 acres, more or less 
 
Field No(s).:  Undesignated 
 
Tax Map Key:  (1) 6-9-001:003; :033 
 
Land Status:  Set aside by the Governor’s Executive Order No. 4474 to the 

Agribusiness Development Corporation for Agricultural Purposes 
 
Trust Land Status:  Section ___ lands of the Hawaii Admission Act 
     Yes ___ No  X 
 

DHHL 30% entitlement lands pursuant to the Hawaii State 
Constitution?  Yes ___ No  X 

 
Character of Use:  Aquaculture 
 
Land Doc. Type:  Revocable Permit 
 
Term:  Month-to-month (renews annually) 
 
Rental Rate:  $100 per month per year 
  Annual Rent: $1,200 
 

 
 
BACKGROUND: 
 
On August 27, 2014, the Board of Directors of the Agribusiness Development Corporation 
(“ADC) voted to approve the acceptance of 147 acres, more or less, (the “Property”) (see 
“Exhibit A”) which include the above-referenced TMKs, among others, near Mokuleia from 
the Department of Land and Natural Resources (“DLNR”). The land was transferred to the 
ADC via Governor’s Executive Order No. 4474 dated November 24, 2014 (“EO 4474”). 

062



Request for Approval to Renew Revocable Permit No. S-6814 Issued to Ronald P. Weidenbach 
dba Hawaii Fish Company for 18 Acres, More or Less, in Kaena, Waialua, Oahu, Tax Map Key (1) 
6-9-001:003, :033 
May 18, 2022 
Page 2 of 5 
 
 
 
Included in the transfer was one tenant, Ronald P. Weidenbach dba Hawaii Fish Company 
(“Permittee”), under DLNR Revocable Permit No. S-6814 (see “Exhibit B”) (the “Permit”) 
for 18 acres, more or less, for purposes of general aquaculture (the “Premises”). Included 
in the 18 acres was a 7-acre pond.  In May 2015, Permittee submitted a proposal to ADC 
for a long-term license for the 18 acres as well as an additional 77 acres, totaling 95 acres 
to develop an integrated aqua-farm. Instead of a license, at their meeting on May 27, 2015, 
the ADC Board approved the issuance of a Revocable Permit to Permittee for the 18 
acres, including the 7-acre pond, pending negotiations of the terms of an eventual license. 
Unfortunately, ADC and Permittee were unable to agree to license terms. ADC maintained 
an interest the makai lands, as well as a portion of the pond to promote other aquacultural 
interests; Permittee maintained their request for exclusive use of all usable lands and the 
pond to establish their aqua-farm. Subsequent negotiations were intractable and 
unproductive. In fact, Permittee has even refused to sign the ADC Revocable Permit and 
has been operating on holdover status under the Permit.   
 
At their meeting on April 28, 2021, the Board of the Agribusiness Development 
Corporation (“ADC”) voted to approve the withdrawal of EO 4474 and re-set aside the 
property to the Hawaii Department of Agriculture (“HDOA”) who has expressed interest 
in managing the Property, along with DLNR’s Division of Forestry and Wildlife for a 
Game Management Area. At their meeting on April 22, 2022, the DLNR board approved 
the withdrawal of EO 4474 and the re-set aside of the Property to the HDOA. Until the 
Governor’s office withdraws EO 4474, the Property and the Permittee remain under the 
control and management of ADC. 
 
LAND REQUEST: 
 
To approve the annual renewal of the Permit for one year, or until EO 4474 is withdrawn 
and re-set aside to the HDOA, whichever may be sooner. 
 
WATER NEEDS AND SOURCE OF WATER: 
 
The Premises include a 7-acre pond which the Permittee utilizes for fish stock 
production. Additional water is provided by an 8” well located on-site.   
 
OPERATIONAL PLAN: 
 
Permittee conducts aquaculture operations on-site for sale to local markets.  
 
CONSERVATION PLAN: 
 
There is no conservation plan on file.  
 
DISCUSSION: 
 
The subject property has been approved to be re-set aside from ADC to HDOA as 
approved by DLNR. Until such time as the Governor issues an executive order 

063



Request for Approval to Renew Revocable Permit No. S-6814 Issued to Ronald P. Weidenbach 
dba Hawaii Fish Company for 18 Acres, More or Less, in Kaena, Waialua, Oahu, Tax Map Key (1) 
6-9-001:003, :033 
May 18, 2022 
Page 3 of 5 
 
 
formalizing the transfer, the property and tenant remain under the management and 
control of ADC.  
 
RECOMMENDATION: 
 
Based on the foregoing, staff recommends that the Board approve the land request noted 
above, subject to the following conditions: 
 

1. The renewal term shall commence on June 1, 2022 and shall expire on May 31, 2023 
or at such time as EO 4474 shall be withdrawn and the Property re-set aside to the 
HDOA, whichever shall sooner occur; and 
 

2. All other terms and conditions of the Permit shall remain unchanged. 
 
 
      Respectfully Submitted, 
 
 
 
      James J. Nakatani 
      Executive Director 
 
 
  

064



Request for Approval to Renew Revocable Permit No. S-6814 Issued to Ronald P. Weidenbach 
dba Hawaii Fish Company for 18 Acres, More or Less, in Kaena, Waialua, Oahu, Tax Map Key (1) 
6-9-001:003, :033 
May 18, 2022 
Page 4 of 5 
 
 

EXHIBIT A 
 
 

  

065



Request for Approval to Renew Revocable Permit No. S-6814 Issued to Ronald P. Weidenbach 
dba Hawaii Fish Company for 18 Acres, More or Less, in Kaena, Waialua, Oahu, Tax Map Key (1) 
6-9-001:003, :033 
May 18, 2022 
Page 5 of 5 
 
 

EXHIBIT B 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Revocable Permit No. S-6814 
 

[see following pages] 
 
 

066



067



068



069



070



071



072



073



074



075



 
 
 

 
 
 
 

 
 

DAVID Y. IGE 
Governor 

 
JOSH GREEN 
Lt. Governor 

JAMES J. NAKATANI 
Executive Director 

STATE OF HAWAII 
AGRIBUSINESS DEVELOPMENT CORPORATION 

235 S. Beretania Street, Room 205 
Honolulu, HI  96813 

Phone:  (808) 586-0186   Fax:  (808) 586-0189 

ITEM D-4 

May 18, 2022 
 
Subject: Request for Approval to Renew Revocable Permit No. RP17-01 

Issued to Andros Engineering Corporation for 132.25 Square Feet, 
More or Less, in Whitmore Village, Oahu, Tax Map Key (1) 7-1-
002:004 (por) 

 
Permittee:  Andros Engineering Corporation 
 
Authority:  Section 163D-4(a)(5), Hawaii Revised Statutes 
 
Area:   132.25 square feet, more or less 
 
Bldg No(s).:  Bldg E 
 
Tax Map Key:  (1) 7-1-002:004 
 
Land Status:  Acquired in fee by the Agribusiness Development Corporation in 

2015.  
 
Trust Land Status:  Section ___ lands of the Hawaii Admission Act 
     Yes ___ No  X 
 

DHHL 30% entitlement lands pursuant to the Hawaii State 
Constitution?  Yes ___ No  X 

 
Character of Use:  Commercial/Agricultural Recycling 
 
Land Doc. Type:  Revocable Permit 
 
Term:  Month-to-month (renews annually) 
 
Rental Rate:  $79.35 per month per year 
  Annual Rent: $952.20 
 

 
 
BACKGROUND: 
 
Andros Engineering Corporation (“AEC”) has been renting office space located in 
Building E (“Exhibit A”) in Whitmore since 2017. AEC is a world supplier of specialized 
agricultural equipment that deal in irrigation, research and development, and biotech 
contract services (recycling). AEC also occupies a covered parking and storage shed in 
Whitmore, identified as Building F.  

076



Request for Approval to Renew Revocable Permit No. RP17-01 Issued to Andros Engineering 
Corporation for 132.25 Square Feet, More or Less, in Whitmore Village, Oahu, Tax Map Key (1) 7-
1-002:004 (por) 
May 18, 2022 
Page 2 of 4 
 
 
 
The Permittee has been a good tenant with timely and complete rent payments.  
 
LAND REQUEST: 
 
To approve the annual renewal of the Permit (see “Exhibit B”) for the period of July 1, 
2022 – June 30, 2023.  
 
WATER NEEDS AND SOURCE OF WATER: 
 
For the purposes of the Permittee’s use, there are no water needs. However, the 
premises do have access to bathroom facilities which is connected to BWS water and 
sewer.  
 
OPERATIONAL PLAN: 
 
The premises provide administrative space for Permittee’s operation within ADC’s 
Whitmore food hub master-planned area.  
 
CONSERVATION PLAN: 
 
For the purposes of Permittee’s use, a conservation plan is not required.  
 
DISCUSSION: 
 
The premises are located within ADC’s Whitmore food hub master-planned area. As 
such, a short-term revocable permit is appropriate for this disposition.  
 
RECOMMENDATION: 
 
Based on the foregoing, staff recommends that the Board approve the land request noted 
above, subject to the following conditions: 
 

1. All current terms and conditions of the Permit shall remain unchanged.  
 
 
      Respectfully Submitted, 
 
 
 
      James J. Nakatani 
      Executive Director 
 
 
  

077



Request for Approval to Renew Revocable Permit No. RP17-01 Issued to Andros Engineering 
Corporation for 132.25 Square Feet, More or Less, in Whitmore Village, Oahu, Tax Map Key (1) 7-
1-002:004 (por) 
May 18, 2022 
Page 3 of 4 
 
 

EXHIBIT A 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Map 
 

[see following page] 
 

  

078



079



Request for Approval to Renew Revocable Permit No. RP17-01 Issued to Andros Engineering 
Corporation for 132.25 Square Feet, More or Less, in Whitmore Village, Oahu, Tax Map Key (1) 7-
1-002:004 (por) 
May 18, 2022 
Page 4 of 4 
 
 
 

EXHIBIT B 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Revocable Permit No. RP17-01 
 

[see following pages] 
 
 

080



081



082



083



084



085



086



087



088



089



090



 
 
 

 
 
 
 

 
 

DAVID Y. IGE 
Governor 

 
JOSH GREEN 
Lt. Governor 

JAMES J. NAKATANI 
Executive Director 

STATE OF HAWAII 
AGRIBUSINESS DEVELOPMENT CORPORATION 

235 S. Beretania Street, Room 205 
Honolulu, HI  96813 

Phone:  (808) 586-0186   Fax:  (808) 586-0189 

ITEM D-5 

May 18, 2022 
 

 
Subject: Request for Approval to Renew Revocable Permit No. RP20-02 

Issued to Kelena Farms Inc. for 345.38 Acres in Waialua, Oahu, 
Tax Map Key (1) 6-5-002:011, :006, :008, (1) 6-5-001:046 

 
Permittee:  Kelena Farms Inc. 
 
Authority:  Section 163D-4(a)(5), Hawaii Revised Statutes 
 
Area:   345.38 acres 
 
Field No(s).:  Undesignated 
 
Tax Map Key:  (1) 6-5-002:011, :006, :008, (1) 6-5-001:046 
 
Land Status:  Acquired in fee by the Agribusiness Development Corporation in 

2017 – 2019. 
 
Trust Land Status:  Section ___ lands of the Hawaii Admission Act 
     Yes ___ No   X 
 

DHHL 30% entitlement lands pursuant to the Hawaii State 
Constitution?  Yes ___ No   X 

 
Character of Use:  Agricultural 
 
Land Doc. Type:  Permit 
 
Term:  Month-to-month (renews annually)  
 
Rental Rate:  $100 per acre per year 
  Annual Rent: $34,538 
 

 
 
BACKGROUND: 
 
Since 2012, the Agribusiness Development Corporation (“ADC”)  has acquired over 
3,000 acres in Central Oahu as part of its land acquisition campaign to preserve 
agricultural land and expand its land inventory, so it can provide long-term agreements 
to farmers. Some of the land ADC acquired were encumbered and actively farmed at the 
time of the purchase, including the subject tenant. Subsequent to the purchase of the 

091



Request for Approval to Renew Revocable Permit No. RP20-02 Issued to Kelena Farms Inc. for 
345.38 Acres, More or Less, in Waialua, Oahu, Tax Map Key (1) 6-5-002:011, :006, :008, (1) 6-5-
001:046 
May 18, 2020 
Page 2 of 5 
 
 
property, ADC issued Revocable Permit No. RP20-02 to Kelena Farms Inc. (“Permittee” 
or “Kelena Farms”) (see “Exhibit B”) for 345.38 acres of the subject property (see 
“Exhibit A”) (the “Premises”) pending the purchase of certain well easements from Dole 
Food Company, at which time a long-term license will be issued.  
 
Kelena Farms is a Hawaii corporation and one of the largest producers of fresh fruits 
and vegetables and has been farming on five contiguous parcels, which include the 
subject properties, since 2008. They are excellent operators and currently sell produce 
to large retailers and local distributors.  
 
LAND REQUEST: 
 
To approve the annual renewal of the Permit for the period of July 1, 2022 – June 30, 
2023.  
 
WATER NEEDS AND SOURCE OF WATER: 
 
The Premises are currently irrigated via water delivered from Dole Well #25 located over 
a mile away on Dole property. The well, among others, are currently under active 
procurement by ADC from Dole Food Company. The Premises include a reservoir and 
irrigation distribution furnished installed by the Permittee (no state funds used).  
 
OPERATIONAL PLAN: 
 
The Permittee grows fruits and vegetables that include, but are not limited to, cabbage, 
bell pepper, and watermelon 
 
CONSERVATION PLAN: 
 
The terms of the Permit require that a conservation plan be developed. While a plan has 
not yet been developed, Permittee does farm with windbreaks and soil erosion mitigation 
techniques in place. Permittee has assured staff that a conservation plan will be 
developed forthwith.  
 
DISCUSSION: 
 
Conservation planning notwithstanding, Permittee has been an excellent steward of the 
Premises and has improved the property at his own expense through the installation of 
reservoirs and irrigation distribution lines which enhance the use and value of the subject 
property.  
 
RECOMMENDATION: 
 
Based on the foregoing, staff recommends that the Board approve the land request noted 
above, subject to the following conditions: 
 

1. All current terms and conditions of the Permit shall remain unchanged.  

092



Request for Approval to Renew Revocable Permit No. RP20-02 Issued to Kelena Farms Inc. for 
345.38 Acres, More or Less, in Waialua, Oahu, Tax Map Key (1) 6-5-002:011, :006, :008, (1) 6-5-
001:046 
May 18, 2020 
Page 3 of 5 
 
 
 
 
      Respectfully Submitted, 
 
 
 
      James J. Nakatani 
      Executive Director 
 
 
  

093



Request for Approval to Renew Revocable Permit No. RP20-02 Issued to Kelena Farms Inc. for 
345.38 Acres, More or Less, in Waialua, Oahu, Tax Map Key (1) 6-5-002:011, :006, :008, (1) 6-5-
001:046 
May 18, 2020 
Page 4 of 5 
 
 

EXHIBIT A 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Maps 
 

[see following pages] 
 

  

094



095



096



Request for Approval to Renew Revocable Permit No. RP20-02 Issued to Kelena Farms Inc. for 
345.38 Acres, More or Less, in Waialua, Oahu, Tax Map Key (1) 6-5-002:011, :006, :008, (1) 6-5-
001:046 
May 18, 2020 
Page 5 of 5 
 
 

EXHIBIT B 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Revocable Permit No. RP20-02 
 

[see following pages] 

097



098



099



100



101



102



103



104



105



106



107



108



109



 
 
 

 
 
 
 

 
 

DAVID Y. IGE 
Governor 

 
JOSH GREEN 
Lt. Governor 

JAMES J. NAKATANI 
Executive Director 

STATE OF HAWAII 
AGRIBUSINESS DEVELOPMENT CORPORATION 

235 S. Beretania Street, Room 205 
Honolulu, HI  96813 

Phone:  (808) 586-0186   Fax:  (808) 586-0189 

ITEM D-6 

May 18, 2022 
 
Subject: Request for Approval to Renew Revocable Permit No. RP20-01 

Issued to Ho Farms LLC for 57.296 Acres at Galbraith, Oahu, Tax 
Map Key (1) 7-1-012:001 (por) 

 
Permittee:  Ho Farms LLC 
 
Authority:  Section 163D-4(a)(5), Hawaii Revised Statutes 
 
Area:   57.269 acres 
 
Field No(s).:  Lot 12 
 
Tax Map Key:  (1) 7-1-012:001 
 
Land Status:  Acquired  in fee by the Agribusiness Development Corporation in 

2012. 
 
Trust Land Status:  Section ___ lands of the Hawaii Admission Act 
     Yes ___ No   X 
 

DHHL 30% entitlement lands pursuant to the Hawaii State 
Constitution?  Yes ___ No   X 

 
Character of Use:  Agricultural 
 
Land Doc. Type:  Permit 
 
Term:  Month-to-month (renews annually)  
 
Rental Rate:  $100 per acre per year 
  Annual Rent: $5,778.30 
 

 
 
BACKGROUND: 
 
The Galbraith Agricultural Lands (“GAL”) small farmer area is comprised of twelve 
contiguous lots ranging in size from six to eighty acres. The subject area is identified as 
Lot 12 and is 57.296 acres (the “Premises). The Premises are held under Revocable 
Permit No. RP20-02 (“Permit”) which was issued to Ho Farms LLC (“Permittee”) on July 
1, 2020.  
 

110



Request for Approval to Renew Revocable Permit No. RP20-01 Issued to Ho Farms LLC for 57.296 
Acres at Galbraith, Oahu, Tax Map Key (1) 7-1-012:001 (por) 
May 18, 2020 
Page 2 of 4 
 
 
Currently, Permittee also farms on 62.025 acres of Lot 11, immediately adjacent to the 
Premises. Permittee grows tomato, cucumber, eggplant, papaya, and an assortment of 
other fruits and vegetables.  
 
LAND REQUEST: 
 
To approve the annual renewal of the Permit for the period of July 1, 2022 – June 30, 
2023.  
 
WATER NEEDS AND SOURCE OF WATER: 
 
The Premises are currently irrigated via water delivered from Bott Well. 
 
OPERATIONAL PLAN: 
 
The Permittee grows fruits and vegetables that include, but are not limited to, tomato, 
cucumber, eggplant, and papaya. 
 
CONSERVATION PLAN: 
 
Permittee has updated their existing conservation plan to include the lands under the 
Permit.  
 
DISCUSSION: 
 
Permittee has been an excellent steward of the Premises and has improved the property 
at their own expense through the installation of a shade house use and value of the 
subject property. Permittee is also in discussions with Hawaiian Electric Company to 
bring power onto the property which ADC will also use to convert Bott Well to electric 
power.  
 
The subject Premises are currently held under a revocable permit as they are intended 
for partial development under ADC’s Wahiawa Recycled Water Irrigation Project. 
 
RECOMMENDATION: 
 
Based on the foregoing, staff recommends that the Board approve the land request noted 
above, subject to the following conditions: 
 

1. All current terms and conditions of the Permit shall remain unchanged.  
 
 
      Respectfully Submitted, 
 
 
 
      James J. Nakatani 
      Executive Director 

111



Request for Approval to Renew Revocable Permit No. RP20-01 Issued to Ho Farms LLC for 57.296 
Acres at Galbraith, Oahu, Tax Map Key (1) 7-1-012:001 (por) 
May 18, 2020 
Page 3 of 4 
 
 

EXHIBIT A 

 

112



Request for Approval to Renew Revocable Permit No. RP20-01 Issued to Ho Farms LLC for 57.296 
Acres at Galbraith, Oahu, Tax Map Key (1) 7-1-012:001 (por) 
May 18, 2020 
Page 4 of 4 
 
 

EXHIBIT B 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Revocable Permit No. RP20-01 
 

[see following pages] 

113



114



115



116



117



118



119



120



121



122



123



124



 
 
 

 
 
 
 

 
 

DAVID Y. IGE 
Governor 

 
JOSH GREEN 
Lt. Governor 

JAMES J. NAKATANI 
Executive Director 

STATE OF HAWAII 
AGRIBUSINESS DEVELOPMENT CORPORATION 

235 S. Beretania Street, Room 205 
Honolulu, HI  96813 

Phone:  (808) 586-0186   Fax:  (808) 586-0189 

ITEM D-7 

May 18, 2022 
 
Subject: Request for Approval to Renew Revocable Permit No. RP-W257-21-

02 Issued to The Davey Tree Expert Company and Davey Tree 
Surgery Company for 21,392.7 Square Feet, More or Less, in 
Whitmore Village, Oahu, Tax Map Key (1) 7-1-002:004 (por) 

 
Permittee:  The Davey Tree Expert Company 
   Davey Tree Surgery Company 
 
Authority:  Section 163D-4(a)(5), Hawaii Revised Statutes 
 
Area:   21,392.7 square feet, more or less 
 
Bldg No(s).: Bldg E (por), Bldg J (por), Bldg I, and undesignated open space for 

parking 
 
Tax Map Key:  (1) 7-1-002:004 
 
Land Status:  Acquired in fee by the Agribusiness Development Corporation in 

2015.  
 
Trust Land Status:  Section ___ lands of the Hawaii Admission Act 
     Yes ___ No  X 
 

DHHL 30% entitlement lands pursuant to the Hawaii State 
Constitution?  Yes ___ No  X 

 
Character of Use:  Commercial/Landscaping 
 
Land Doc. Type:  Revocable Permit 
 
Term:  Month-to-month (renews annually) 
 
Rental Rate:  Office: $0.60 per sq ft per month 
  Storage/Parking $0.10 per sq ft per month 
  Annual Rent: $2,305.80 
 

 
 
BACKGROUND: 
 
ADC and the Davey Tree Expert Company (“Davey Tree Expert”) executed Revocable 
Permit No. RP16-01 on March 1, 2016 for 224 sq. ft. of office space, 5,000 sq ft of covered 
storage space, and 10,000 sq. ft. of open parking area. Davey Tree Expert had been 

125



Request for Approval to Renew Revocable Permit No. RP-W257-21-02 Issued to The Davey Tree 
Expert Company and Davey Tree Surgery Company for 21,392.7 Square Feet, More or Less, in 
Whitmore Village, Oahu, Tax Map Key (1) 7-1-002:004 (por) 
May 18, 2022 
Page 2 of 4 
 
 
gradually expanding their operations and the expansion resulted in a certain amount of 
encroachment upon the premises of adjacent tenants. 
 
At the meeting in September 20, 2020, the Board approved Davey Tree Expert’s request to 
include 5,460 sq. ft. of Building J (por) for the purpose of equipment storage.  
 
At the meeting on June 23, 2021, the Board approved a request to issue a new Revocable 
Permit No. RP-W257-21-02 (“Permit”) (see “Exhibit B”) issued to both The Dave Tree Expert 
Company and Davey Tree Surgery Company (collectively the “Davey Tree Companies”) and 
include additional office space (the “Premises”) (see “Exhibit A”).  
 
LAND REQUEST: 
 
To approve the annual renewal of the Permit for the period of July 29, 2022 – July 28, 2023. 
 
WATER NEEDS AND SOURCE OF WATER: 
 
For the purposes of the Permittee’s use, there are no water needs. However, the Premises 
do have access to bathroom facilities which is connected to BWS water and sewer.  
 
OPERATIONAL PLAN: 
 
The Premises provide administrative, covered storage, and parking space for Permittee’s 
operation within ADC’s Whitmore food hub master-planned area.  
 
CONSERVATION PLAN: 
 
For the purposes of Permittee’s use, a conservation plan is not required.  
 
DISCUSSION: 
 
The premises are located within ADC’s Whitmore food hub master-planned area. As such, a 
short-term revocable permit is appropriate for the use.  
 
RECOMMENDATION: 
 
Based on the foregoing, staff recommends that the Board approve the land request noted above, 
subject to the following conditions: 
 

1. All current terms and conditions of the Permit shall remain unchanged.  
 
 
      Respectfully Submitted, 
 
 
 
      James J. Nakatani 
      Executive Director 
 

126



Request for Approval to Renew Revocable Permit No. RP-W257-21-02 Issued to The Davey Tree 
Expert Company and Davey Tree Surgery Company for 21,392.7 Square Feet, More or Less, in 
Whitmore Village, Oahu, Tax Map Key (1) 7-1-002:004 (por) 
May 18, 2022 
Page 3 of 4 
 
 

EXHIBIT A 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Map 
 

[see following page]  

127



128



Request for Approval to Renew Revocable Permit No. RP-W257-21-02 Issued to The Davey Tree 
Expert Company and Davey Tree Surgery Company for 21,392.7 Square Feet, More or Less, in 
Whitmore Village, Oahu, Tax Map Key (1) 7-1-002:004 (por) 
May 18, 2022 
Page 4 of 4 
 
 

EXHIBIT B 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Revocable Permit No. RP-W257-21-02 
 

[see following pages] 
 
 

129



130



131



132



133



134



135



136



137



138



139



140



141



142



143



 
 
 

 
 
 
 

 
 

DAVID Y. IGE 
Governor 

 
JOSH GREEN 
Lt. Governor 

JAMES J. NAKATANI 
Executive Director 

STATE OF HAWAII 
AGRIBUSINESS DEVELOPMENT CORPORATION 

235 S. Beretania Street, Room 205 
Honolulu, HI  96813 

Phone:  (808) 586-0186   Fax:  (808) 586-0189 

ITEM D-8 

May 18, 2022 
 
Subject:  Request for Authorization to Seek an Opinion from the Department  

of the Attorney General Concerning Legal Issues Pertaining to  
Kekaha Agriculture Association’s Important Agricultural Lands (IAL) 
Petition  

 
Applicant:  Kekaha Agriculture Association (KAA) 
 
Authority:  Section 163D-4(a)(18), Hawaii Revised Statutes (HRS) 
 
Location:  Kekaha, Island of Kauai, Hawaii 
 
Land Area:  Portions of the Mānā plain lands, approximately 12,123 acres 
 
Tax Map Key:  (4) 1-2-002-001 
 
Land Status:  Set aside by the Governor’s Executive Order No. 4007 to the 

Agribusiness Development Corporation (ADC) for Agricultural and 
Related Purposes 

 
Trust Land Status:  Ceded land under Section 5(b) lands of the Hawaii Admission Act 
     Yes   X   No ___ 
 

DHHL 30% entitlement lands pursuant to the Hawaii State 
Constitution?  Yes   X   No ___ 

 
Character of Use:  Agricultural 
 
Land Doc. Type:  N/A 
 
Term:  N/A 
 
Rental Rate:  N/A 
 

 
 
BACKGROUND: 
 
On December 2, 2021, KAA filed a Petition for Declaratory Order to Designate Important 
Agricultural Lands (Petition) with the Land Use Commission (LUC). This Petition was 
assigned Docket No. DR 21-76.  Through the Petition, KAA sought to have 12,123 acres 
of land at Kekaha, Kauai declared as important agricultural lands. The 12,123 acres of 

144



Request for Authorization to Seek an Opinion from the Department of the Attorney General Concerning Legal 
Issues Pertaining to Kekaha Agriculture Association’s Important Agricultural Lands Petition 
May 18, 2022 
Page 2 of 5 
 
 
land were set aside for agricultural and related purposes to be under the control and 
management of ADC.     
 
On March 16, 2022, the ADC Board reauthorized KAA to pursue a declaratory order to 
designate ADC’s Kekaha lands as IAL in accordance with HRS section  205-45.  The 
ADC Board further provided consent, on behalf of the State of Hawaii as the fee simple 
landowner authorized by Executive Order No. 4007 and HRS section 171-2(11), for 
purposes of approving and supporting KAA’s Petition.  Finally, the ADC Board 
authorized ADC staff to assist and cooperate with KAA as necessary to secure the 
designation of the Mānā plain lands as important agricultural land.  A hearing on KAA’s 
Petition under Docket No. DR 21-76 was scheduled December 23, 2021, and thereafter 
rescheduled for further hearing on May 11, 2022.  
 
On April 27, 2022, KAA filed a Motion to Amend Petition for Declaratory Order to 
Designate Important Agricultural Lands with the LUC.  The purpose of the amendment 
was to reduce the amount of acreage from 12,123 acres to 11,863 acres. 
 
On May 4, 2022, the Board of Land and Natural Resources (BLNR) filed a Memorandum 
Regarding KAA’s Petition for Declaratory Order to Designate Important Agricultural 
Lands (Memorandum) with the LUC.  See attached Exhibit A.  The Memorandum 
opposed the Petition. 
 
On May 5, 2022, ADC responded to the BLNR Memorandum.  See attached Exhibit B.  
ADC questioned the contents of the Memorandum and noted that the late filing of the 
Memorandum did not provide sufficient time to thoughtfully respond to the issues raised.   
 
On May 6, 2022, KAA advised the LUC that KAA intended to orally withdraw the Petition 
at the May 11, 2022 hearing as permitted by HAR section 15-15-70.  
 
On May 11, 2022, at the LUC hearing, KAA orally moved to withdraw the Petition.  The 
oral motion to withdraw was granted.     
 
REQUEST: 
 
The BLNR Memorandum raised several issues in its memorandum: 
 

1) ADC does not meet the definition of “landowner” and therefore was not 
authorized to give KAA permission to seek IAL designation through HRS 
section 205-45; 

2) ADC did not properly consult with BLNR before approving KAA’s Petition; 
3) Reclassifying lands to IAL at the request of KAA violates BLNR’s public trust 

obligations; and 
4) KAA does not meet the definition of “farmer”. 

 
See attached Exhibit 1 
 
 
DISCUSSION: 

145



Request for Authorization to Seek an Opinion from the Department of the Attorney General Concerning Legal 
Issues Pertaining to Kekaha Agriculture Association’s Important Agricultural Lands Petition 
May 18, 2022 
Page 3 of 5 
 
 
 
HRS section 28-3, provides that the “attorney general shall, when requested, give 
opinions upon questions of law submitted by the governor, the legislature, or its 
members, or the head of any department.”  KAA has asked ADC to approach its 
department head for purposes of submitting a request to the Attorney General for an 
opinion on the questions of law raised by BLNR through its Memorandum. 
 
RECOMMENDATION: 
 
Accordingly, it is recommended that the ADC Board authorize ADC Staff to submit a 
formal request that the head of the Hawaii Department of Agriculture (prior to July 1, 
2022) or the head of the Hawaii Department of Business, Economic Development, and 
Tourism (beginning July 1, 2022 and after), as the department to which ADC is 
administratively attached, asking the Attorney General for an opinion upon the following 
questions of law: 
 

(1) In regard to a petition for important agricultural land designation pursuant to HRS 
section 205-45, for purposes of meeting the definition of “Landowner” as set forth 
in section 15-15-03, Hawaii Administrative Rules (HAR), as necessary to 
demonstrate authorization of the applicable landowner in compliance with HAR 
section 15-15-121, must the landowner authorization be made by ADC pursuant 
to Executive Order No. 4007 and HRS section 171-2(11), which removes lands 
set aside to ADC by executive order from the definition of “public lands”; or DLNR 
based upon its reversionary interest, should some subsequent act cause the 
lands to regain the status of “public lands”, which would return management, 
administration, and control of the public lands to DLNR pursuant to HRS section 
171-3;  

(2) In regard to a petition for important agricultural land designation pursuant to HRS 
section 205-45, should the petitioner be ADC, or KAA, or both, where the petition 
for declaratory order to designate the lands as important agricultural lands may 
be filed by a farmer or a landowner;  

(3) In regard to a petition for important agricultural land designation pursuant to HRS 
section 205-45, does an agricultural cooperative composed of farmers, organized 
under HRS section 421, meet the term “farmer” for purposes of filing a petition for 
declaratory order to designate the lands as important agricultural lands; and  

(4) Should a petition to seek important agricultural lands designation for lands set 
aside to ADC pursuant to HRS section171-2(11) be brought under HRS section 
205-44.5 or HRS section 205-45? 

 
      Respectfully Submitted, 
 
 
 
      James J. Nakatani 
      Executive Director 
 
  

146



Request for Authorization to Seek an Opinion from the Department of the Attorney General Concerning Legal 
Issues Pertaining to Kekaha Agriculture Association’s Important Agricultural Lands Petition 
May 18, 2022 
Page 4 of 5 
 
 

EXHIBIT A 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

“State of Hawai‘i Through Its Board of Land and Natural Resources’ Memorandum Regarding 
Kekaha Agriculture Association’s Petition to Declaratory Order to Designate Important 

Agricultural Lands” 
 

[see following pages 1-10] 
 
 

  

147



148

QuinonesNA
LUC Stamp



149



150



151



152



153



154



155



156



157



Request for Authorization to Seek an Opinion from the Department of the Attorney General Concerning Legal 
Issues Pertaining to Kekaha Agriculture Association’s Important Agricultural Lands Petition 
May 18, 2022 
Page 5 of 5 
 
 

EXHIBIT B 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

ADC Response to “State of Hawai‘i Through Its Board of Land and Natural Resources’ 
Memorandum Regarding Kekaha Agriculture Association’s Petition to Declaratory Order to 

Designate Important Agricultural Lands” 
 

[see following pages 1-2] 

158



159



160



ITem 
 
 
 
 

 
 
 
 
 

DAVID Y. IGE 
Governor 

 
JOSH GREEN 
Lt. Governor 

DAVID Y. IGE 
Governor 

 
JAMES J. NAKATANI 

Executive Director 

STATE OF HAWAII 
AGRIBUSINESS DEVELOPMENT CORPORATION 

235 S. Beretania Street, Room 205 
Honolulu, HI  96813 

Phone:  (808) 586-0186   Fax:  (808) 586-0189 

 
JAMES J. NAKATANI 

Executive Director 

Item F 

Executive Director’s Update 
 

May 18, 2022 
 

 
 

2022 Legislative Session 
 

The adjournment sine die for the 2022 Legislative Session was on May 5, 2022. The ADC  
tracked the following bills as it made its way through the legislative process: 
 

• SB 2480 – Relating to the Wahiawa Irrigation System 
 
  This measure authorizes the issuance of bonds to the Department of Land and Natural 
  Resources, Hawaii Department of Agriculture, and ADC to purchase the Wahiwa 

 Irrigation System, which includes Lake Wilson. This measue failed to make it out of 
 conference, but funding was appropriated to the various departments to address this 
 critical issue. 

 
• SB2473 – Relating to Economic Development  

 
This measure transfers the ADC from the Hawaii Department of Agriculture to the 
Department of Business, Economic Development, and Tourism. The bill also amends 
the focus, scope, and management of the ADC.  This measure passed out of 
conferencing and passed both the House and Senate Chambers and is effective July 1, 
2022. 

 
The ADC received the following appropriations from the Legislature for Capital Improvement  
Projects: 
 

1. Agricultural Infrastructure Improvements, Oahu - $4,000,000 
 
 Plans, design, construction, and equipment for agricultural infrastructure improvements, 
 which includes improvements for the 3 deep wells.  
 

2. Kekaka Ditch Irrigation System Modification, Kauai - $3,500,000 
 
 Plans, design, construction, and equipment for modification to the Kekaha ditch irrigation 
 system, which includes modifications to the stream diversions pursuant to settlement 
 agreement with Earth Justice.  
 

3. Waiahole Water System Improvements, Kunia, Oahu - $5,000,000 
 

161



ADC Executive Director’s Update          
May 18, 2022 
Page 2 of 3 
 
 Plans, design, construction, and equipment for improvements to the Waiahole Water 
 System and appurtenant works, which includes a back-up well and enclosing 
 problematic and hazardous sections of the open ditch system.  
 

4. Wahiawa Reclaimed Water Irrigation System, Oahu - $1,620,000 
 
 Design for a new wastewater reclaimed water irrigation system at the Wahiawa 
 Wastewater Treatment Plant. Additional design funding needed to construct the system 
 in phases.   
 
The ADC also received funding for 2 full-time positions, 1 accountant, and 1 asset manager. 
 

 
REPI/Encroachment Partnering – Whitmore Annex Update 

 

 
 
The ADC is awaiting the establishment of a sub-account for funds received from the sale of a  
restrictive use easement to the U.S. Navy.  The funds received will be used for improvements in  
and around the Whitmore community.  The ADC is continuing its discussions with the U.S. Navy  
to sell restrictive use easements (RUE) on ADC lands surrounding the Joint Base Pearl Harbor 
Hickam (JBPHH) Wahiawa Annex.  The Navy has an interest in preventing interference with the 
transmission of communications, preserve the agricultural use of the land, and prevent other 
uses that would be incompatible with the military mission and operations and has the capability 
and funding to pay the fair market value of an RUE, up to 50% of the full value of the underlying 
fee simple interest.  

162



ADC Executive Director’s Update          
May 18, 2022 
Page 3 of 3 
 
In 2016, the ADC acquired 195 acres in Whitmore (Priority Area 1) from the Trust For Public  
Lands (TPL).  TPL first purchased the 195 acres and simultaneously placed an RUE on the  
property and transferred the encumbered property to ADC at half the value of the fee, saving  
the State $1.8 million. 
 

163


	Agenda
	D-2 RFQ for HPP Machine
	D-3 Ronald Weidenbach RP Renew
	D-4 Andros Engineering RP Renew (Office)
	D-5 Kelena Farms RP Renew
	D-6 Ho Farms RP Renew
	D-7 Davey Tree RP Renew
	D-8 Authorization to see AG Opinion Pertaining to IAL
	F Executive Director's Update



